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Q-1. 3.03 Required Services - 1. Investments  

The purpose of the MLGIP is to provide an investment medium in which the participants 
may temporarily invest their surplus or idle balances.  To achieve this purpose, the 
investments of the MLGIP must be both absolutely secure and readily liquid without 
capital loss.    
 
a.  With the exception of securities carrying the backing of the full faith and credit of the 
United States Government no guarantees can be made to the absolute security of any 
security. Please define "absolute security".   
 
b.  Additionally, please elaborate on the reference to "without capital loss" and the 
accounting methodology to be used. For example: would Purchase vs. Sale Price be 
appropriate for zero coupon securities and for coupon securities would amortized cost or 
adjusted book be used?   

 
c.  Would you expect the retained firm to fully cover losses on securities in the account?  

 
A-1. See Amendment No. 1 to the RFP. 
 
 a. “Absolute security,” should be interpreted to mean an expectation that NAV will 

always equal $1.  That is, there will be no loss of principle.   
 
           b. “Without capital loss,” means an expectation that a participant invests $1.00 and gets 

back at least a $1.00, with no loss of principal.  To achieve that end, the Contractor must 
limit exposure to loss.  Accounting methodology must comply with Rule 2a-7 of the 
Investment Company Act of 1940. 

 
c. No.  The Contractor will not be a Guarantor of principal value. 

 
Q-2. Do you have a custodian or does this include custody?  
 
A-2. There is no separate custodian.  The successful offeror must act as or provide custodian 

services. 
  



Q-3. Section 3.03 Required Services, 2. Banking - Who is the incumbent and how do they 
handle the individual accounts?  

 
A-3. PNC is the incumbent.  They establish single or multiple accounts as requested by the 

participants. 
 
Q-4. Although we are not headquartered in Maryland, we have a strong presence in the state. 

Do we qualify to bid on this RFP? 
 
A-4. Yes.  See Section III, 3.02, Minimum Qualifications.  
 
Q-5. Will you please provide a copy of the annual report dated June 30, 2008? 
 
A-5. Please go to the website for Maryland Local Government Investment Pool at 

www.MLGIP.com and click, “Annual Report.” 
 
Q-6. Are all transactions facilitated for the participants by the contractor or do participants 

have direct access to debit the pool without contractor’s knowledge? 
 
A-6. All transactions are processed through the contractor.  There is no direct access by 

participants to debit the pool. 
 
Q-7. Can participants authorize third party vendors to debit/credit the pool without the 

contractor’s knowledge? 
 
A-7. No.  All transactions must be authorized by the participants’ representative and are 

processed through the contractor. 
 
Q-8. How many cash management accounts does MLGIP have currently? 
 
A-8. MLGIP currently has one cash management account. 
 
Q-9. What is the average number of transactions clearing the cash management accounts 

monthly?  
 
A-9. The average number of transactions is 2,000 per month. 
 
Q-10. Does MLGIP have any call volume reports for participants contacting current provider? 
 
A-10. No. 
 
Q-11. Does MLGIP have check-writing program on the current fund? 
 
A-11. There is a check-writing program, however most participants have funds Fedwired into 

the participants checking account. 
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Q-12. Are there other investments that participants invest in outside the pool?  What we are 
looking for is do they have Certificates of Deposits and Fixed Term assets or other 
Investments outside the pool. 

 
A-12. Yes.  Participants are free to invest in accordance with State Law and their investment 

policies.  The State Treasurer’s Office (“STO”) has no knowledge (other than its own 
investments) of the types of outside investments made by participants. 

 
Q-13. Who are the approved triparty custodians for repurchase agreements? 
  
A-13. Use of Triparty Repo is not approved. 
 
Q-14. Who are the approved counterparties for repurchase agreements and what is their limit? 
 
A-14. A current list of approved counterparites will not be made available.  Counterparties are 

updated continuously due to changing market conditions. 
 
Q-15. What is the current penetration rate and the penetration rate for each of the last 5 years? 

Can you also provide that data by County?   
 
A-15. The penetration rate for the last 5 years is as follows: 
   
  Year  Participants 

2008       294 
2007       292 
2006        289 
2005       287 
2004        285 

 
Data is not available by county. 

 
Q-16. In addition to the minimums for the marketing plan as stated in the RFP on page 16, 

what other marketing efforts / programs are offered by the current Contractor?  Have 
these efforts and programs been successful?  What other marketing efforts and programs 
are desired? 

 
A-16. No other marketing efforts/programs are offered by the current contractor.  The STO 

believes the marketing efforts and programs have been successful and that market 
penetration has been thorough.  We are seeking creative ideas from offerors for 
additional/alternative marketing. 

 
Q-17. Is MLGIP currently using Remote Deposit Capture processes to collect taxes and other 

deposits? 
 
A.17. No. 
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Q-18. Does MLGIP currently use a Procurement Card process? 
 
A-18. No. 
 
Q-19. What is the average number of custody transactions per day? 
 
A-19. Daily participant transactions average 50 to 100 per day.  See Answer 9. 
 
Q-20. The contract included with the RFP is dated January 1, 2009.  What is the effective date 

for managing the funds?  Please describe the transition phase. 
 
A-20. The contract begins 1/1/09 A transition phase will be discussed with qualifying offerors. 
 
Q-21. Regarding the audit- 

a.   Who is responsible for hiring the auditor? 
  b.   Is there an existing contract with PWC? 

c.   Who pays the auditor? 
d.   What is the scope of the auditor’s services? 

 
A-21. a.   The Contractor is responsible for hiring the auditor. 
 b.   PNC has secured the services of PricewaterhouseCoopers. 
 c.   Auditor fees are included in the Management Fees. 

d.  Complete Audit in accordance with 2A-7 requirements and to maintain the AAAm 
rating from S&P.  

 
Q-22. Interest is currently paid on the first business day of the next month.  Can it be paid on 

the last day of the month? 
 
A-22. Yes.  Some participants receive interest by Fedwire.  Interest can be Fedwired or paid to 

the accounts on the last day of the month. 
 
Q-23. Can the daily report that is based on the close of business be submitted the following 

day? 
 
A-23. It is expected that the report will be automatically generated and sent after close of 

business, to arrive not later than 9:00 a.m. on the following day.  
 
Q-24. Given the current market environment and expected revenue short falls at the state and 

local level, what is the projected average balances in the Pool for each of the first three 
years of the contract? 

 
A-24. There are no projected balances.  To project balances would be mere speculation. 
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Q-25. Will you please supply the questions/answers from all parties planning to respond? 
 
A-25. Questions and Answers document is provided to all potential offerors on the State 

Treasurer’s Office distribution list, the Office’s website and through eMaryland 
Marketplace. 

 
Q-26. Page 8 of the RFP, Section 3.02: Minimum Qualifications.  Is it permissible for us as 

an SEC-registered investment advisor to seek a relationship with such a Maryland 
financial institution in order to provide services?  We have many strong relationships 
with financial intermediaries in the State of Maryland and could seek to be a 
subcontractor to such a firm, or otherwise partner with such a firm to meet requirements 
for servicing this contract.  

 
A-26. Yes. 
 
Q-27. Is it possible for an addendum to be sent out that would eliminate the branch 

requirement?   
 
A-27.   No.  Section 3.02 Minimum Qualifications, Item 2., requirement for a branch presence in 

Maryland will not be eliminated.  If the Offeror does not have a branch location in 
Maryland and/or a Maryland County, it shall specify to the State Treasurer’s Office, the 
name of the correspondent bank which does have locations in the State and/or county. 

 
Q-28. On page 10, Section 3.03.2, you provide a deadline of 2 P.M. E.T. for same day access to 

funds for withdrawal requests.  Are there corresponding dollar limits that may impact this 
deadline?   

 
A-28. No dollar limits affect these time deadlines. 
 
Q-29. If a client has $100 million, then can they request a withdrawal at 1:30 and still expect to 

receive these funds the same day?  It may be difficult to raise this type of cash with such 
short notice. 

 
A-29. Yes.  It is expected that the MLGIP participants will receive the requested funds the same 

day, regardless of the amount, as long as the withdrawal request is made by 2 p.m. EST. 
 
Q-30. Please clarify the cut-off times listed in question # 2 (under section 3.03)  
 
A-30. ▪ All deposits received by 3:00 p.m. E.T. will qualify for interest the day the deposit is 

made. 
▪ Withdrawal requests received before 2:00 p.m. E.T. shall be granted that same day. 
▪ Withdrawal requests received after 2:00 p.m. shall receive next day availability. 

 
Q-31. On page 11, Section 3.03.2, you indicate that "The Contractor must have available toll-

free telephone lines …" Please describe in more detail the requirements for the toll-free 
telephone line (i.e. scope of services; availability; etc). 
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A-31. Some participants prefer to transact their business by phone.  Presently there are toll free 

lines that the participants may call during normal business hours for transactions or 
information. 

 
Q-32. On page 12, Section 3.03.7, you indicate that the website must have "… secure 

transaction capabilities."  Please describe in more detail the extent of the transaction 
capabilities you require.  

 
A-32. Some participants prefer to transact their business by computer.  Presently there are 

secure computer lines and processes. 
 
Q-33. On page 12, Section 3.03.7, the current website for the MLGIP is www.MLGIP.com.  

Which entity controls access to and is responsible for the current content provided on this 
website?  Is it the current Contractor, the State of Maryland or Other?  If the site is 
controlled by the Contractor, then do you anticipate a change in web address if another 
Contractor is chosen?   

 
A-33. “MLGIP.com” is owned by PNC.  If another Offeror is selected, they would have to 

establish and maintain a new fully functional website. 
 
Q-34. On page 16, Section 4.03.6, you request a Marketing Plan.  Please provide the number of 

MLGIP members throughout the State of Maryland and current penetration rate. What is 
the historical growth rate in participation over the past 5 years? 

 
A-34. See A-15. 
 
Q-35. How and when will you provide answers to our questions? 
 
A-35.   Questions and Answers document is provided to all potential offerors on the State 

Treasurer’s Office distribution list, the Office’s website and through eMaryland 
Marketplace. 

 
Q-36. In the annual report for the MLGIP the following paragraph lists administrative costs but 

does not mention investment management fees.  Are they also included in this schedule 
or are they separate?  

 
“Administrative Costs 
Effective January 1, 2002 in accordance with the terms of the services agreement, the 
contractor, Mercantile Safe Deposit & Trust Company, charges an administrative fee 
based on the asset size of the Pool as follow: 
0.030% on the first $1 billion 
0.027% between $1 billion - $2 billion 
0.024% over $2 billion” 
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A-36. All administrative services, i.e. reporting, collections, custodial and fund transfers, are 
included in this fee.  The fees are accrued daily and charged monthly to the Pool.  As 
stated, “All administrative services, i.e. reporting, collections, custodial and fund 
transfers, are included in this fee.” This fee covers everything.  It is the Administrative 
and Management fees.  It is all inclusive. 

 
Q-37. What is the anticipated minimum and maximum that will be in the account? 
 
A-37. The fund is currently $2.5 billion +/-.  There is no way to project minimum and 

maximum amounts.  
 
Q-38. Would maintaining an NAV of .995 be acceptable?  
 
A-38. It is expected that NAV will equal $1.  Any value less than $1 will require immediate 

corrective action in accordance with SEC guidelines to restore the value. 
 
Q-39. Section 3.02 Minimum Qualifications of III. Scope of Services and Requirements: 

 
1.  The Offeror must be a Maryland financial institution as defined in Section 6-

201(e) of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of 
Maryland (Exhibit 1). 

2. The financial institution must have a full service branch presence in the State of 
Maryland and must provide a list of all branches in the State. 

 
Would this preclude a Registered Investment Advisor which is not a bank, but is 
registered to do business in Maryland, is located outside the State of Maryland, and has 
no full service branch presence in Maryland, to win this contract? 
 

A-39. A Registered Investment Advisor would not be precluded from being awarded the 
contract provided it has arrangements with a financial institution to meet the requirements 
of the RFP including a branch presence in Maryland.  See also Answer 27. 
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